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IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
FOR THE MIDDLE DISTRICT OF FLORIDA
JACKSONVILLE DIVISION

FEDERAL TRADE COMMISSION,

Petitioner,
Misc. No.

V.
AFR FINANCIAL LLC,

Respondent.

N N N N N N N N N N N

PETITION OF THE FEDERAL TRADE COMMISSION FOR AN ORDER
ENFORCING ADMINISTRATIVE INVESTIGATIVE PROCESS
AND MEMORANDUM OF LAW
The Federal Trade Commission (FTC) petitions this Court under Section 20 of the

Federal Trade Commission Act (FTC Act), 15 U.S.C. § 57b-1, for an order requiring
Respondent, AFR Financial LLC (AFR Financial), to comply with a Civil Investigative
Demand (CID), a form of administrative compulsory process. The CID was issued in the
course of a nonpublic investigation concerning possible violations by AFR Financial, a
debt collection firm, of Section 5 of the FTC Act, 15 U.S.C. § 45(a), and provisions of
the Fair Debt Collection Practices Act (FDCPA), 15 U.S.C. 88 1692-1692p. The CID
directs AFR Financial to respond to 14 interrogatories and 4 document requests
concerning its purchase of debt portfolios from third parties, its attempts to collect on the

consumer loans listed in those portfolios, and its efforts to verify the validity of those

loans. The CID had a return date of April 8, 2016.
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AFR Financial has not responded to the CID. FTC staff has repeatedly contacted
the company, to no avail, regarding its non-compliance. The Commission therefore asks
this Court to order AFR Financial to appear and show cause why it should not comply
with the CID in full.

This proceeding is summary in nature and is properly instituted by a petition and
order to show cause (rather than a complaint and summons). See, e.g., United States v.
Elmes, 532 F.3d 1138, 1141-45 (11th Cir. 2008); United States v. Markwood, 48 F.3d
969, 981-82 (6th Cir. 1995); Appeal of FTC Line of Bus. Report Litig., 595 F.2d 685,
704-05 (D.C. Cir. 1978). Discovery or evidentiary hearings are granted only in
exceptional circumstances. See, e.g., FTC v. Carter, 636 F.2d 781, 789 (D.C. Cir. 1980);
FTC v. MacArthur, 532 F.2d 1135, 1141-42 (7th Cir. 1976); Genuine Parts Co. v. FTC,
445 F.2d 1382, 1388 (5th Cir. 1971).

A declaration under penalty of perjury by FTC attorney Michael E. Tankersley,
which verifies the allegations of this Petition, is attached hereto as Petition Exhibit (“Pet.
Exh.”) 1. The Commission also submits the following additional exhibits:

Pet. Exh. 2  Records of Florida Secretary of State, Division of Corporations
(accessed July 27, 2016)

Pet. Exh. 3  Records of Florida Office of Financial Regulation (accessed July
27, 2016)

Pet. Exh. 4 Declaration of Michael Jared Marsh, FTC v. Brace, et al., No.
1:15-cv-875 (W.D.N.Y. Oct. 5, 2015)

Pet. Exh. 5  Civil Investigative Demand directed to AFR Financial LLC (FTC
File No. 1523038) (Mar. 23, 2016)

Pet. Exh.6  FTC Resolution No. 992-3140 (Apr. 15, 1999)
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Pet. Exh. 7 Letter from Donald E. Pinaud, Jr., Kattman & Pinaud, P.A., to
FTC attorney Michael Tankersley (Apr. 5, 2016)

Pet. Exh. 8  Letter from Tankersley to Pinaud (Apr. 12, 2016)

Pet. Exh. 9  Email exchange between Tankersley and Pinaud (Apr. 13, 2016)

Pet. Exh. 10 Email from Tankersley to Pinaud (May 27, 2016)

Pet. Exh. 11  Email from Tankersley to Pinaud (Jun. 7, 2016)

Pet. Exh. 12 Email exchange between Tankersley and Pinaud (July 15, 2016)

The Parties

1. The Commission is an administrative agency of the United States,
organized and existing pursuant to the FTC Act, 15 U.S.C. § 41 et seq. It is empowered
by Section 5(a) of the FTC Act, 15 U.S.C. § 45(a), to prohibit, inter alia, “unfair or
deceptive acts or practices in or affecting commerce.” The Commission is also
authorized to enforce the FDCPA, 15 U.S.C. 88 1692-1692p, violations of which “shall
be deemed an unfair or deceptive act or practice” under Section 5, 15 U.S.C. § 1692I(a).

2. Respondent, AFR Financial, is a Florida limited liability company with its
principal place of business at 8028 Lone Star Road in Jacksonville, Florida. Pet. Exh. 2.
AFR Financial is licensed as a “Consumer Collection Agency” under Florida law, license
number CCA9903708. Pet. Exh. 3. Under Florida law, “Consumer Collection Agency”
refers to “any debt collector or business entity engaged in the business of soliciting
consumer debts for collection or of collecting consumer debts,” unless otherwise

exempted. Fla. Stat. § 559.55(3).
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Jurisdiction and Venue

3. Section 3 of the FTC Act, 15 U.S.C. § 43, authorizes the Commission to
prosecute any inquiry necessary to its duties in any part of the United States. Section 6 of
the FTC Act, 15 U.S.C. 8§ 46, empowers the Commission to gather and compile
information concerning, and to investigate from time to time, the business and practices
of persons, partnerships, or corporations engaged in or whose business affects commerce,
with certain exceptions not relevant here. Section 20 of the FTC Act, 15 U.S.C. § 57b-1,
empowers the Commission to issue CIDs to require any person, inter alia, to produce
documentary material, to file written reports or answers, and to give oral testimony
relating to any Commission law enforcement investigation.

4, Section 20 of the FTC Act provides this Court with jurisdiction over AFR
Financial and authorizes it to enforce the CID. Section 20(e) states as follows:

Whenever any person fails to comply with any civil investigative demand

duly served upon him under this section, or whenever satisfactory copying

or reproduction of material requested pursuant to the demand cannot be

accomplished and such person refuses to surrender such material, the

Commission, through such officers or attorneys as it may designate, may

file, in the district court of the United States for any judicial district in

which such person resides, is found, or transacts business, and serve upon

such person, a petition for an order of such court for the enforcement of

this section.

15 U.S.C. § 57b-1(e). Section 20(h) authorizes the Court “to hear and determine the
matter so presented, and to enter such order or orders as may be required to carry into

effect the provisions of this section.” 15 U.S.C. 8 57b-1(h). This Court also has

jurisdiction pursuant to 28 U.S.C. 88§ 1331, 1337(a), and 1345.
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5. AFR Financial resides in and engages in commerce in this district, as the
term “commerce” is defined under Section 4 of the FTC Act. 15 U.S.C. § 44. Because
the Middle District of Florida is a jurisdiction within which AFR Financial “resides, is
found, or transacts business,” venue is proper under Section 20 of the FTC Act. 15
U.S.C. § 57b-1(e).

The Commission’s Investigation

6. This investigation concerns AFR Financial’s acquisition and use of debt
portfolios, which are “pools of . . . payment obligations that the original lenders have
been unable to collect.” Dunham v. Portfolio Recovery Assocs., LLC, 663 F.3d 997, 999
(8th Cir. 2011).

7. The FTC has received complaints from consumers and others that debt
collectors are attempting to collect on short-term “payday” loans made under the name
“500FastCash.” Pet. Exh. 1 1 4. These loans were serviced by AMG Services, Inc.
(AMG). AMG’s corporate representative has attested that neither AMG nor any of its
clients have sold any customer account information or placed or sold any charged-off
accounts to third parties. Pet. Exh. 1 4; see also Pet. Exh. 4, Decl. of Michael Jared
Marsh, FTC v. Brace, et al., No. 1:15-cv-875 (W.D.N.Y. Oct. 5, 2015). Thus, according
to AMG’s representative, any attempts by any third party to collect on 500FastCash or
other AMG-serviced loans are unauthorized. Id.

8. The FTC has learned that collectors claiming to work for Respondent,
AFR Financial, have contacted consumers and demanded repayment of 500FastCash

loans. Pet. Exh. 1 5.
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0. Last year, the Commission initiated an enforcement action against certain
other debt collectors, alleging that their demand that consumers repay the 500FastCash
loans violated Section 5 of the FTC Act and various provisions of the FDCPA, which,
inter alia, prohibits debt collectors from making false or deceptive representations, 15
U.S.C. 8 1692e. See Complaint, FTC v. Brace, et al., No. 1:15-cv-875 (W.D.N.Y. Oct. 5,
2015), available at

https://www.ftc.gov/system/files/documents/cases/151104delawaresolcmpt.pdf

Authority for and Issuance of the CID

10. On March 23, 2016, the Commission issued a CID to AFR Financial under
the authority of FTC Resolution No. 992-3140, which authorizes the use of any and all
compulsory process

to determine whether in the process of collecting debts, unnamed persons,
partnerships or corporations may be engaging in, or may have engaged in, acts
or practices in violation of the Fair Debt Collection Practices Act, 15 U.S.C. 8§
1692 et seq., and/or Section 5 of the Federal Trade Commission Act, 15
U.S.C. 8 45, as amended. Such investigation shall, in addition, determine

whether Commission action to obtain redress of injury to consumers or others
would be in the public interest.

Pet. Exh. 1 1 6; Pet. Exh. 5 (CID); Pet. Exh. 6 (Resolution).

11.  The CID seeks information and documents from AFR Financial relating to
debt portfolios containing 500FastCash and other AMG-serviced loans including, among
other things, the source and sale of any such portfolios, and its efforts to collect on loans
purportedly issued by clients of AMG. The CID also requests information and

documents regarding AFR Financial’s corporate structure, management, and debt


https://www.ftc.gov/system/files/documents/cases/151104delawaresolcmpt.pdf
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collection practices, including its practices for resolving consumer disputes and verifying
the validity of purchased debt acquired from others. Pet. Exh. 1 | 7; Pet. Exh. 5.

12. The CID required AFR Financial to respond to 14 interrogatories and 4
document requests by April 8, 2016. Pet. Exh. 5. The CID informed AFR Financial that
it must raise any “factual or legal objections” to the CID by filing a petition to limit or
quash the CID with the Commission within 20 days after service (see 16 C.F.R. §
2.10(a)).

AFR Financial’s Failure to Respond to the CID

13.  On April 1, 2016, FTC attorney Michael Tankersley received a phone call
from Kimona Fuartado, a manager of AFR Financial, who explained that she had
received the CID. Pet. Exh. 1 9. Ms. Fuartado stated that she was familiar with the
500FastCash loans and that she believed that AFR Financial had made some calls to
collect on those loans. Id. Ms. Fuartado also stated that the company possessed
responsive information. ld. She explained, however, that AFR Financial was unable to
comply with CID’s April 8 production deadline because she was still seeking legal
counsel to respond to the requests. I1d.

14, On April 11, 2016, FTC staff received a letter (dated April 5) via U.S.
Postal Service from Donald E. Pinaud, Jr., Esg. of Kattman & Pinaud, P.A., stating that
he had been retained to represent AFR Financial and Ms. Fuartado. Pet. Exh. 1 { 10; Pet.
Exh. 7. Mr. Pinaud’s letter asked for written clarification of “exactly what or who you

are investigating, and why exactly you want information from my clients.” Id.
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15. On April 12, 2016, Mr. Tankersley sent a letter in response to Mr.
Pinaud’s letter via email and facsimile. Pet. Exh. 1 § 11; Pet. Exh. 8. Mr. Tankersley
explained that the CID seeks information regarding AFR Financial’s collection of
500FastCash debt and that Ms. Fuartado had already informed him that the company
possesses responsive material. 1d. Mr. Tankersley also noted that the CID’s production
deadline had already passed and he requested that AFR Financial respond to the
interrogatories and produce the responsive records as soon as possible. I1d.

16. On April 13, 2016, Mr. Pinaud sent an email to Mr. Tankersley claiming
that he “need[ed] to know” whether the FTC is “looking at or suggesting or investigating
any wrongdoing by my clients . . . before we cooperate.” Later that day, Mr. Tankersley
responded to Mr. Pinaud’s email by explaining that while the CID *“does not accuse,
suggest or presume any wrongdoing by AFR Financial,” the CID seeks information to
help FTC staff “evaluate whether any wrongdoing has occurred, and, if so, who may be
responsible.” See Pet. Exh. 1 § 12; Pet. Exh. 9.

17. During early May 2016, Mr. Tankersley left several voicemail messages
for Mr. Pinaud requesting that he return Mr. Tankersley’s call regarding AFR Financial’s
response to the CID. Pet. Exh. 1§ 13. Mr. Pinaud did not respond until May 16, 2016,
when he called Mr. Tankersley and again asked whether his clients were targets of the
FTC investigation. 1d. Mr. Tankersley explained that the Commission had not made any
decisions regarding wrongdoing or liability, and that it had issued the CID to gather
information. Id. Mr. Pinaud said he would speak to his client and prepare a response to

the CID that week. Id.
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18. On May 25, 2016, Mr. Tankersley left another voicemail message for Mr.
Pinaud regarding AFR Financial’s response to the CID. Pet. Exh. 1 {14. Mr. Pinaud did
not respond to that message. Id.

19. On May 27, 2016, Mr. Tankersley sent an email to Mr. Pinaud requesting
that Mr. Pinaud call him about AFR Financial’s “long overdue” response to the CID. See
Pet. Exh. 1 { 15; Pet. Exh. 10. Mr. Tankersley urged AFR Financial to provide at least
“an interim response to show progress on complying with the Civil Investigative
Demand.” Id. Mr. Pinaud did not respond to the email. Pet. Exh. 1 Y 15.

20. On June 2, 2016, Mr. Tankersley called Mr. Pinaud’s office and received
an automated message stating that the voice mailbox was full. Pet. Exh. 1 {16. On June
6, 2016, Mr. Tankersley left another voicemail message for Mr. Pinaud. Id. Mr. Pinaud
did not respond to the message. Id.

21. On June 7, 2016, Mr. Tankersley sent an email to Mr. Pinaud again
requesting AFR Financial’s response to the CID. Pet. Exh. 1 § 17; Pet. Exh. 11. Mr.
Tankersley requested that Mr. Pinaud return his call immediately and cautioned that
should AFR Financial not provide a proper response to the CID, the “next step” would be
to bring an enforcement action in federal district court. 1d. Mr. Pinaud did not respond to
the email. Pet. Exh. 1§ 17.

22. On July 15, 2016, Mr. Tankersley sent an email notifying Mr. Pinaud that
the matter had now been referred to the FTC’s Office of the General Counsel to initiate

an enforcement action in federal district court. Pet. Exh. 1 | 18; Pet. Exh. 12. That same
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day, Mr. Pinaud responded by stating that he had “an appointment with [his client] the
week of August 1,” which was “the earliest our calendars could accommodate.” 1d.

23.  Although AFR Financial’s response to the CID was due on April 8, 2016,
it has not produced any documents or answered any of the interrogatories. Pet. Exh. 1
19.

24.  AFR Financial has not filed a petition to limit or quash the CID. Id.; see
15 U.S.C. § 57b-1(f); 16 C.F.R. 2.10(a).

25. AFR Financial’s failure to comply with the CID greatly impedes the
Commission’s ongoing investigation, and prevents the Commission from completing its
investigation in a timely manner. Pet. Exh. 1 { 20.

Memorandum of Law

The court’s role in a proceeding to enforce an administrative subpoena or CID is
“sharply limited.” United States v. Fla. Azalea Specialists, 19 F.3d 620, 623 (11th Cir.
1994) (quoting EEOC v. Kloster Cruise Ltd., 939 F.2d 920, 922 (11th Cir. 1991)). While
“the court’s function is neither minor nor ministerial, the scope of issues which may be
litigated in [a compulsory process] enforcement proceeding must be narrow, because of
the important governmental interest in the expeditious investigation of possible unlawful
activity.” FTC v. Texaco, Inc., 555 F.2d 862, 872 (D.C. Cir. 1977) (en banc) (internal
citation omitted). Thus, a district court must enforce agency process so long as (1) the
inquiry is within the authority of the agency; (2) the demand is not too indefinite; and (3)
the information sought is reasonably relevant. EEOC v. Tire Kingdom, Inc., 80 F.3d 449,

450 (11th Cir. 1996) (per curiam) (citing United States v. Morton Salt Co., 338 U.S. 632,

10
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652 (1950)); Fla. Azalea Specialists, 19 F.3d at 623; see also United States v. Lockheed
Martin Corp., 995 F. Supp. 1460, 1462 (M.D. Fla. 1998).

The Commission has satisfied the requirements for judicial enforcement of the
CID, as shown by the accompanying declaration of Michael Tankersley, the FTC’s lead
attorney in this investigation. See Pet. Exh. 1. The CID was duly issued in an
investigation the Commission is authorized to conduct, and it seeks documents and
information reasonably relevant to the investigation. Additionally, Section 20(f) of the
FTC Act, 15 U.S.C. 8 57b-1(f), precludes AFR Financial from raising objections to
judicial enforcement, since it failed to exhaust its administrative remedies by presenting
any such objections to the Commission in a petition to limit or quash the CID. See supra
1112, 24; 16 C.F.R. § 2.10(a). The Commission, accordingly, respectfully requests that
this Court direct AFR Financial to appear and show cause why it should not fully comply,
and thereafter enter its own order enforcing the CID. See, e.g., Fla. Azalea Specialists,
19 F.3d at 623-24.

l. The Commission Is Authorized To Conduct The Investigation.

The FTC has ample authority to issue CIDs in its investigations (see supra { 3),
and it is unequivocally authorized to conduct the investigation at issue. The CID requests
records and information in connection with debt portfolios purporting to list consumer
loans issued under the name “500FastCash” or serviced by AMG Services, Inc. See
supra 11 6-9. False representations regarding consumer debts may violate Section 5 of

the FTC Act, 15 U.S.C. § 45(a),* which prohibits unfair or deceptive acts or practices,

! Section 5 provides, in relevant part:

11



Case 3:16-mc-00045-MMH-JRK Document 1 Filed 07/29/16 Page 12 of 17 PagelD 12

and several provisions of the FDCPA, e.g., 15 U.S.C. 88 1692e, 16929, which bars false,
deceptive, or misleading debt collection practices and requires collectors to provide
consumers with dispute resolution rights and verify the validity of debts acquired from
third parties.” Accordingly, the investigation to which the CID pertains falls well within
the FTC’s statutory authority.

I1. The CID Was Duly Issued.

The Commission’s March 23, 2016 CID fully comports with the applicable
procedural requirements of the authorizing statute and its implementing FTC Rules of

Practice. See Pet. Exh. 5; 15 U.S.C. §57b-1; 16 C.F.R. § 2.7.

(a)(2) [U]nfair or deceptive acts or practices in or affecting commerce, are
hereby declared unlawful.

(2) The Commission is hereby empowered and directed to prevent
persons, partnerships, or corporations . . . from using . . . unfair or
deceptive acts or practices in or affecting commerce.

15U.S.C. § 45.

2 Section 807 of the FDCPA provides, in relevant part, “A debt collector may not use any
false, deceptive, or misleading representation or means in connection with the collection
of any debt,” including by falsely representing “the character, amount, or legal status of
any debt” or “that accounts have been turned over to innocent purchasers for value.” 15
U.S.C. § 1692e.

Section 809 of the FDCPA provides, inter alia, that if a consumer notifies a debt
collector that he or she is disputing the alleged debt, “the debt collector shall cease
collection of the debt, or any disputed portion thereof, until the debt collector obtains
verification of the debt or a copy of a judgment, or the name and address of the original
creditor, and a copy of such verification or judgment, or name and address of the original
creditor, is mailed to the consumer by the debt collector.” 15 U.S.C. § 1692g(b).

12
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First, the CID satisfies the FTC Act’s requirements of “definiteness and certainty”
because it specifies the kinds of documents and information to be produced. 15 U.S.C. §
57b-1(c)(3)(A), (c)(5)(A); see also Pet. Exh. 5 (CID). In this instance, the CID
prescribed a return date of more than two weeks after issuance, giving AFR Financial a
“reasonable period of time” to assemble the specified documents and prepare its
responses to interrogatories—and AFR Financial did not ask for additional time.® 15
U.S.C. 8§ 57b-1(c)(3)(B), (c)(5)(B). The CID also “identif[ied] the custodian[s]” (Michael
B. Goldstein and Michael Tankersley) to whom the documents were to be produced and
to whom the responses shall be directed. See 15 U.S.C. § 57b-1(c)(3)(C), (c)(5)(C).
Moreover, the CID was validly “signed by a Commissioner,” in this case, Commissioner
Maureen K. Ohlhausen, “acting pursuant to a Commission resolution.” 15 U.S.C. § 57b-
1(i).

Finally, the CID included a copy of the Commission’s compulsory process
resolution (see supra  10), thus giving AFR Financial adequate notice of “the nature of
the conduct constituting the alleged violation which is under investigation and the
provision of law applicable to such violation.” 15 U.S.C. 8 57b-1(c)(2); 16 C.F.R. § 2.6;
Pet. Exh. 5 & 6; see FTC v. O’Connell Associates, Inc., 828 F. Supp. 165, 170-71
(E.D.N.Y. 1993) (notice requirement is met by “cit[ing] a resolution giving the FTC

authority to use compulsory process™).

® The FTC’s Rules of Practice authorize certain FTC officials to extend a CID’s
production deadline if the recipient demonstrates satisfactory progress towards
compliance. 16 C.F.R. § 2.7(1).

13
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I11.  The Evidence Sought is Relevant and Material to the Investigation.

The standard for judging relevancy in an investigation is a broad one. In an
investigation, the Commission is not limited to seeking information that is necessary to
prove specific charges. Rather, the objective of an investigation is to learn whether there
is reason to believe that the law has been, or is being, violated and, if so, whether the
issuance of a complaint would be in the public interest. See Texaco, 555 F.2d at 872; see
also Fla. Azalea Specialists, 19 F.3d at 622-23 (an agency “can investigate merely on
suspicion that the law is being violated, or even just because it wants assurance that it is
not”) (quoting Morton Salt, 338 U.S. at 642-43). The required documents and
information, therefore, need only be relevant to the investigation—the boundary of which
may be defined by the agency quite generally. See Carter, 636 F.2d at 787-88; Texaco,
555 F.2d at 874 & n.26; FTC v. Invention Submission Corp., 965 F.2d 1086, 1090 (D.C.
Cir. 1992).

The CID seeks information central to the current investigation. It requires AFR
Financial to produce documents and respond to interrogatories concerning its (1)
corporate structure and management, (2) acquisition of debt portfolios containing
500FastCash and other AMG-serviced loans, (3) efforts to collect on those loans, (4)
consumer dispute resolution practices, and (5) efforts to verify the validity of debt it
purchases from others. Pet. Exh. 5; Pet. Exh. 1 7. This information is directly relevant
to the subjects identified in the Commission’s resolution, namely whether “in the process
of collecting debts, unnamed persons, partnerships or corporations may be engaging in,

or may have engaged in, acts or practices in violation of the Fair Debt Collection

14
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Practices Act, 15 U.S.C. §8 1692 et seq., and/or Section 5 of the Federal Trade
Commission Act, 15 U.S.C. 8 45.” Pet. Exh. 6. The CID also seeks documents
concerning AFR Financial’s revenues (Pet. Exh. 5), which the resolution plainly
authorizes by directing FTC staff to “determine whether Commission action to obtain
redress of injury to consumers or others would be in the public interest” (Pet. Exh. 6).
Thus, the CID seeks only information that is “reasonably relevant” to the investigation.
Fla. Azalea Specialists, 19 F.3d at 624.

V. AFR Financial’s Failure To Exhaust Its Administrative Remedies Precludes
It From Challenging Judicial Enforcement.

As Magistrate Judge Thomas G. Wilson of this district recently concluded, a CID
recipient’s “failure to exhaust administrative remedies” by filing a petition to limit or
quash with the Commission “precludes [it] from raising objections to the judicial
enforcement of the CID.” See FTC v. Tracers Info. Specialists, Inc., No. 8:16-MC-
18TGW, 2016 WL 3896840, at *3 (M.D. Fla. June 10, 2016). AFR Financial did not file
a petition to limit or quash (supra { 24) and thus may not contest enforcement here.

Section 20(f) of the FTC Act provides that a CID recipient may file with the
Commission a petition to “modify[] or set[] aside the demand” within 20 days, and “shall
comply with any portions of the demand not sought to be modified or set aside.” 15
U.S.C. § 57b-1(f) (emphasis added). The Commission’s Rules of Practice implement this
provision by requiring a CID recipient to file with the Commission a “petition to limit or
quash any compulsory process,” which sets forth “all assertions of protected status or
other factual and legal objections to the Commission compulsory process, including all

appropriate arguments, affidavits, and other supporting documentation.” 16 C.F.R. 8§

15
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2.10(a)(1). The petition is due 20 days after service of the CID, unless a designated FTC
staff member extends the deadline. 16 C.F.R. § 2.10(a)(1), (5). The full Commission
then considers the petition and issues a written ruling. 16 C.F.R. § 2.10(c).

Because AFR Financial did not file an administrative petition to limit or quash, it
may not contest enforcement of the CID “for any reason short of objections based on
constitutional grounds.” EEOC v. Cuzzens of Ga., Inc., 608 F.2d 1062, 1064 (5th Cir.
1979) (per curiam).* See also Morton Salt, 338 U.S. at 653 (recipient of FTC process
may not challenge the demands as “arbitrarily excessive” without first making
“reasonable efforts before the Commission itself to obtain reasonable conditions™);
O’Connell Associates, 828 F. Supp. at 168 (exhaustion requirement applies even if a
process recipient “waits for the FTC to bring an action [rather] than if he himself
institutes it. In either case, there was an administrative mechanism for him to utilize and
he failed to do so.”). Thus, the Court should decline to consider any belated objections to
the CID that AFR Financial may attempt to raise in this proceeding.

Prayer for Relief

WHEREFORE, the Commission invokes the aid of this Court and prays:
a. For the immediate issuance of an order, substantially in the form attached,
directing AFR Financial to appear and show cause why it should not comply in full with

the CID;

* Cases decided by the former Fifth Circuit prior to the close of business on September
30, 1981, are binding precedent. Bonner v. City of Prichard, 661 F.2d 1206, 1209 (11th
Cir. 1981).

16
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b. For a prompt determination of this matter and an order requiring AFR
Financial to fully comply with the CID within ten (10) days of such order, or at such later
date as may be established by the Commission;

G For such other relief as this Court deems just and proper.

Respectfully submitted,

DAVID C. SHONKA
Acting General Counsel

LESLIE RICE MELMAN
Assistant General Counsel for Litigation

M—/‘\

BRADLEY GROSSMAN, Litigation Counsel

Of Counsel: Office of the General Counsel
Federal Trade Commission

MICHAEL E. TANKERSLEY 600 Pennsylvania Ave., N.-W.

Division of Financial Practices Washington, D.C. 20580

(202) 326-2994
(202) 326-2477 (fax)
Dated: July 29, 2016 bgrossman@ftc.gov

17
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PETITION EXHIBIT 1

Declaration of Michael E. Tankersley
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IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
FOR THE MIDDLE DISTRICT OF FLORIDA
JACKSONVILLE DIVISION

FEDERAL TRADE COMMISSION,

Petitioner,
Misc. No.

V.
AFR FINANCIAL LLC,

Respondent.

N N N N N N N N N N N N

DECLARATION OF MICHAEL E. TANKERSLEY
Pursuant to 28 U.S.C. 8 1746, | declare as follows:

1. I am an attorney employed by the U.S. Federal Trade Commission (FTC or
Commission) in Washington, D.C., in the Division of Financial Practices. | am
assigned to an FTC investigation concerning debt portfolios purportedly issued
under the name “500FastCash” or serviced by AMG Services, Inc., and the
collection of such loans.

2. I am authorized to execute a declaration verifying the facts that are set forth in the
Petition of the Federal Trade Commission for an Order Enforcing Administrative
Investigative Process. | have read the petition and exhibits thereto (hereinafter
referred to as Pet. Exh.), and verify that Pet. Exh. 1 through Pet. Exh. 12 are true

and correct copies of the original documents. The facts set forth herein are based
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on my personal knowledge or information made known to me in the course of my
official duties.

3. Respondent, AFR Financial LLC (AFR Financial), is a Florida limited liability
company with its principal place of business at 8028 Lone Star Road in
Jacksonville, Florida. Pet. Exh. 2 (Records of Florida Secretary of State, Division
of Corporations). AFR Financial is licensed as a “Consumer Collection Agency”
under Florida law, license number CCA9903708. Pet. Exh. 3 (Records of Florida
Office of Financial Regulation).

4. The FTC has received complaints from consumers and other sources about debt
collectors who purport to be collecting on short-term consumer loans, often
known as “payday loans,” made under the name “500FastCash.” 500FastCash is
a trade name of Red Cedar Services, Inc. (Red Cedar), an online lender that made
loans serviced by AMG Services, Inc. (AMG). AMG’s legal advisor and former
general counsel, M. Jared Marsh, has attested that neither AMG, nor any of its
clients, including Red Cedar, have sold any of their customer account information
or placed or sold any of their charged-off accounts to third parties. See Pet. Exh.
4, Decl. of Michael Jared Marsh filed in FTC v. Brace, et al., W.D.N.Y. Case No.
1:15-cv-875 (filed Oct. 5, 2015). According to Mr. Marsh, any third-party
collection calls purporting to collect on 500FastCash or other AMG-serviced

loans are unauthorized. Id.
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5. Information obtained by the FTC indicates that consumers have received calls
from collectors identifying themselves as representatives of Respondent AFR
Financial, demanding repayment of 500FastCash loans.

6. The Commission issued a civil investigative demand (CID) to AFR Financial on
March 23, 2016. Pet. Exh. 5. The CID is issued under the authority of FTC
Resolution No. 992-3140 (Pet. Exh. 6), which authorizes the use of compulsory
process

to determine whether in the process of collecting debts, unnamed persons,
partnerships or corporations may be engaging in, or may have engaged in,
acts or practices in violation of the Fair Debt Collection Practices Act, 15
U.S.C. § 1692 et seq., and/or Section 5 of the Federal Trade Commission
Act, 15 U.S.C. § 45, as amended. Such investigation shall, in addition,
determine whether Commission action to obtain redress of injury to
consumers or others would be in the public interest.

7. The CID seeks information and documents from AFR Financial relating to
purported 500FastCash and other AMG debt portfolios including, among other
things, the source and sale of any such portfolios, and efforts to collect loans
purportedly issued by clients of AMG. The CID also requests information and
documents regarding AFR Financial’s corporate structure, management, and debt
collection practices, including its practices for resolving consumer disputes and
verifying the validity of purchased debt acquired from others.

8. The CID directed AFR Financial to respond to document requests and
interrogatories on or before April 8, 2016.

0. On April 1, 2016, | received a telephone call from a woman who identified herself

as Kimona Fuartado, a manager of AFR Financial, explaining that she had
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10.

11.

12.

received the CID. She stated that she was familiar with 500FastCash debt and
that she believed that AFR Financial had made some calls to collect debts using
portfolios listing 500FastCash loans. She also stated that the company had
documents concerning the 500FastCash debts. She explained, however, that AFR
Financial would not respond to the CID by the April 8 deadline because she was
seeking legal counsel to represent the company in its response to the CID.

On April 11, 2016, | received, by regular mail, a letter dated April 5 from attorney
Donald E. Pinaud, Jr. of Kattman & Pinaud P.A., stating that he represented AFR
Financial and Kimona Fuartado. See Pet. Exh. 7. Mr. Pinaud’s letter sought
clarification of “exactly what or who you are investigating, and why exactly you
want information from my clients.”

On April 12, 2016, | sent a letter responding to Mr. Pinaud by email and
facsimile. See Pet. Exh. 8. My letter explained that the CID seeks information
regarding AFR Financial’s collection of 500FastCash debt and that Ms. Fuartado
had already informed me that the company possesses responsive material. |
explained that the CID’s production deadline had already passed and requested
that AFR Financial respond to the interrogatories and produce the responsive
records as soon as possible.

On April 13, 2016, | received an email from Mr. Pinaud in response, stating that
he “need[ed] to know” whether the FTC is “looking at or suggesting or
investigating any wrongdoing by my clients . . . before we cooperate” with the

CID. Later that day, I responded to Mr. Pinaud’s email by explaining that while
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13.

14.

15.

the CID “does not accuse, suggest or presume any wrongdoing by AFR
Financial,” the CID seeks information to help FTC staff “evaluate whether any
wrongdoing has occurred, and, if so, who may be responsible.” See Pet. Exh. 9.
In early May 2016, | called the offices of Kattman & Pinaud on several occasions
and each time was directed to an automated voice mail system to leave a message.
I left messages requesting that Mr. Pinaud call me regarding AFR Financial’s
response to the CID. | did not receive a response until Monday, May 16, 2016,
when Mr. Pinaud called me and inquired whether the CID indicated that his
clients were targets of the FTC investigation. | reiterated that the Commission
had not made any decisions regarding wrongdoing or liability, and that it had
issued the CID to gather information. Mr. Pinaud said he would speak to his
client and prepare a response that week.

On May 25, 2016, | called the offices of Kattman & Pinaud and was directed to an
automated voice mail system to leave a message. | left a message requesting that
Mr. Pinaud call me regarding AFR Financial’s response to the CID. Mr. Pinaud
did not respond to my message.

On May 27, 2016, | sent an email to Mr. Pinaud requesting that he call me
regarding AFR Financial’s “long overdue” response to the CID, and stating,
“Even if AFR Financial is still locating materials, we need an interim response to
show progress on complying with the Civil Investigative Demand.” See Pet. Exh.

10. Mr. Pinaud did not respond to my email.
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16.

17.

18.

On June 2, 2016, | called the offices of Kattman & Pinaud and was directed to an
automated voice mail system that stated that it could not store a message because
the mailbox was full. On June 6, 2016, | called the offices of Kattman & Pinaud
again and was directed to an automated voice mail system. | left a message
requesting that Mr. Pinaud call me regarding AFR Financial’s response to the
CID. Mr. Pinaud did not respond to my message.

On June 7, 2016, | sent an email to Mr. Pinaud again requesting AFR Financial’s
response to the CID. | requested that Mr. Pinaud return my call immediately and
explained that should AFR Financial not provide a proper response to the CID,
the “next step” would involve bringing an enforcement action in federal district
court. See Pet. Exh. 11. Mr. Pinaud did not respond to this email.

On July 15, 2016, I sent an email informing Mr. Pinaud that the matter had now
been referred to the FTC’s Office of the General Counsel to initiate an
enforcement action in federal district court. That same day, Mr. Pinaud
responded by stating that he had “an appointment with [his client] the week of
August 1,” which was “the earliest our calendars could accommodate.” Pet. Exh.

12.
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19. To date, AFR Financial has not provided any response to the CID issued March
23, 2016. Nor has AFR Financial filed a petition to limit or quash the CID with
the Commission. See 15 U.S.C. § 57b-1(f): 16 C.F.R. § 2.10(a).

20. AFR’s failure to respond to the CID has burdened, delayed, and impeded the

Commission’s investigation.

[ declare under penalty of perjury that the foregoing is true and correct.

Executed on July 28, 2016 f’f%g/a% /ﬂ,k{/«yg /

Michael E. Tankersley, Staff Attrrdey
Division of Financial Practices//-
Bureau of Consumer Protection
Federal Trade Commission
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PETITION EXHIBIT 2

Records of Florida Secretary of State,
Division of Corporations
(accessed July 27, 2016)
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FroripA DEPARTMENT OF STATE

 —
s

DivisioN oF CORPORATIONS Sunpiz.
s

Detail by Entity Name
Florida Limited Liability Company

AFR FINANCIAL LLC

Filing Information

Document Number L15000109648
FEIEIN Number NONE

Date Filed 06/24/2015
Effective Date 06/24/2015
State FL

Status ACTIVE

Last Event LC AMENDMENT
Event Date Filed 10/23/2015
Event Effective Date NONE

Principal Address

8028 LONE STARRD
JACKSONVILLE, FL 32211

Mailing Address

8028 LONE STAR RD
JACKSONVILLE, FL 32211

Registered Agent Name & Address

FUARTADO, KIMONA
8028 LONE STAR RD
JACKSONVILLE, FL 32211

Authorized Person(s) Detail
Name & Address

Title MGRM

AUSTIN, CARLA
905 RISING MIST COURT
JACKSONVILLE, FL 32221

Title MGRM
FUARTADO, KIMONA

8028 LONE STAR ROAD
JACKSONVILLE, FL 32211

Annual Reports
No Annual Reports Filed

Document Images

http://search.sunbiz.org/Inquiry/CorporationSearch/SearchResultDetail ?inquirytype=Entity... 7/27/2016
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10/23/2015 -- LC Amendment | View image in PDF format |
06/24/2015 -- Florida Limited Liability | View image in PDF format |
Copyright © and Privacy Policies
State of Flonda, Department of State

http://search.sunbiz.org/Inquiry/CorporationSearch/SearchResultDetail ?inquirytype=Entity... 7/27/2016
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PETITION EXHIBIT 3

Records of Florida Office of
Financial Regulation
(accessed July 27, 2016)
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Home

About OFR  Apply for a License

FLORIDA OFFICE of FINANCIAL REGULATION

ey

—

Page 1 of 1

Smart, Efficient and Effective Regulation

Verify a License  File a Complaint

License Search Results Detail

News

Research Resources

License Name:

AFR FINANCIAL LLC

DBA Name: TRUST FINANCIAL

License Type: Consumer Collection Agency
Status: Approved

Status Effective Date: 12/31/2015

Original Date of License:  11/3/2015

License Number: CCA9903708

License Expiration Date:  12/31/2016

License Main Address:
Street:

City:

State:

Zip Code:

License Mailing Address:

Street:
City:
State:
Zip Code:

8028 LONE STAR ROAD
JACKSONVILLE

FL

32211

8018 FOXDALE DRIVE
JACKSONVILLE

FL

32210

Phone Number:

Search for Final Orders

New Search |

| Return to Search Results

Accessibility

https://real.flofr.com/consumerservices/searchlicensingrecords/SearchDetail.aspx?licNum...

Contact Us
(850) 487-9687

Site Map

7/27/2016
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PETITION EXHIBIT 4

Declaration of Michael Jared Marsh
filed iIn FTC v. Brace, et al.,
W.D.N.Y. Case No. 1:15-cv-875
(filed Oct. 5, 2015)
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DECLARATION OF MICHAEL JARED MARSH
PURSUANT TO 28 U.S.C. §1746

I, Michael Jared Marsh, hereby state that I have personal knowledge of the facts as set

forth below. If called as a witness, I could and would testify as follows:

1.

I am a citizen of the United States and am over eighteen (18) years of age. I live in Prairie
Village, Kansas. -

Ilama practicihg attorney, admitted in the States of Missouri aﬁd Kansas. From January 20,
2009 until February 28, 2015, I held the position of General Counsel at AMG Services, Inc.
(“AMG”). Beginning on March 1, 2015 to the present I have provided legal counsel to
AMG as an .independent legal advisor.

AMG provided loan servicing for a number of entities, wholly owned by federally
recognized Indian Tribes and engaged in extending online, short term, small dollar
consumer ldans. As General Counsel, I assisted management in monitoring and resolving
customer complaints and human resources issues, as well as coordinating with outside legal
counsel regarding regulatory compliance and pending litigation.

In early August 2014, a floor manager from one of the AMG customer service
departments came to my office (o bring to my altention that an increasing number of
phone calls the customer service representatives were receiving were from non-customers
and customers complaining about abusive collection calls from debt collectors claiming
to be collecting on behalf of the tribally owned lenders that were serviced by AMG.
AMG did not have any records of any collection attempts to these non-customers and

customers.

PX 16
000094
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z The floor managér indicated that these calls began coming into the call center beginning
in late July 2014; The floor manager told me that most of these callers were not
customers of any of the tribally owned lenders serviced by AMG.

6. AMG does not have, and never had, the authority to sell or place any consumer or
account information it obtains during the provision of services to its tribal lender clients.
Since 2008, to the best of my knowledge, AMG’s tribal lendér clients have never sold
any of their customer or account information or placed or sold any of their charged-off
accounts to any third-party.

% Once AMG ﬁlanagement was alerted to this pattern of consumer calls, a system to collect
and record the information was created. A form containing the name of the alleged lender
and account number, company and agent calling, the phone number on the consumer’s
caller identification, any callback number, company address, and then notes about any
other details given by the consumer was utilized by the customer service representative to
collect this data. My assistant then transferred this data from the forms to a spreadsheet.

8. In late February 2013, I transferred a copy of this spreadsheet to the FTC via an
encrypted file transfer protocol (“FTP”) website. At that time there were 818 entries on
the spreadsheet. Of these 818, 185 entries were about Delaware Solutions, Clear Credit
Solutions, or some close permutation of those names.

9. In the vast majority of the Delaware Solutions and Clear Credit Solutions entries (166),
the lender Was identified as 500FastCash. 500FastCash is a trade name of Red Cedar
Services, Inc. (“RCS™). Delaware Solutions and Clear Credit Solutions also claimed to be
collecting on behalf of AdvantageCashServices, Ameriloan, OneClickCash,

StarCashProcessing, UnitedCashl.oans, and USFastCash.

PX 16
000095
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10.

11,

2.

13

14.

OneClickCash is a trade name of SFS, Inc. (“SFS”). Ameriloan, AdvantageCashServices,
StarCashProcessing, UnitedCashloans, and USFastCash are trade names of MNE
Services, Inc. (“MNE”).

Red Cedar Sewices, Inc. is a wholly owned governmental instrumentality of the Modoc
Tribe of Oklahoma, a federally recognized Indian Tribe located on Indian lands in the
State of Oklahoma. SES, Inc. is a wholly owned governmental instrumentality of the
Santee Sioux Nation, Nebraska, a federally recognized Indian Tribe located on Indian
lands in the State of Nebraska. MNE Services, Inc. is a wholly owned governmental
instrumentality of the Miami Tribe of Oklahoma, a federally recognized Indian Tribe
located on Indian lands in the State of Oklahoma. AMG provided loan servicing on
behalf of RCS, SFS and MNE.

Some consumers also reported that a company called Braclaire Management was
processing the consumer payménts for Delaware Solutions.

On September 29, 2014, 1 sent a Cease and Desist letter on behalf of Red Cedar Services,
Inc. d/b/a 500FastCash to Clear Credit Solutions by facsimile and U.S. Mail. I sent the
letter to facsimile number 888-491-0608 and the address 300 Delaware Avenue, Suite
210, Wilmington, DE 19801. A true and correct copy of the Cease and Desist letter to
Clear Credit Sofutions is appended hereto as Aftachment A.

On October 9, 2014,71 sent a Cease and Desist letter on behalf of Red Cedar Services, Inc.
d/b/a 500FastCast to Delaware Solutions. I sent the letter via U.S. Mail to the address 300
Delaware Avenue, Suite 210, Wilmington, DE 19801. A true and correct copy of the

Cease and Desist letter to Delaware Solutions is appended hereto as Atfachment B.

PX 16
000096
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15.

16.

17.

18.

18,

Both letters stated that, “500FastCash has not authorized any third-party to sell, broker,
market or collect any debt owed to 500FastCash.” The letters instructed Clear Credit
Solutions and Delaware Solutions that any collection activity undertaken by them that
identified 500FastCash as a creditor was unauthorized and unlawful, and that all such
activity be immediately ceased.

The letters I sent were not returned to me. The letter that [ faxed to Clear Credit Solutions
was transmitted,

In late September 2014 [ was informed by a customer service manager that a man named
Mark Rush with Clear Credit Solutions called the customer service line for 500FastCash
attempting to ifalidate the debt that Clear Credit Solutions claimed to have acquired from
a third-party debt broker. The manager informed Mr. Rush that 500FastCash did not sell
any of its .debt to be collected by any third-party and asked Mr. Rush to provide the name
and contact information of the third-party debt broker that had sold the debt. Mr. Rush
stated he could not provide that information.

Shortly thereafter, I called one of the callback numbers for Clear Credit Solutions that
was provided to a customer service representative by a complaining consumer. I spoke to
an individual who identified himself as a manager. I do not recall if he gave me his name.
I informed him that é.ny attempt to collect in the name of 500FastCash or other trade
names used by AMG’s tribal lender clients was unlawful.

The manager claimed that a rogue agent named Mark Rush had placed the accounts into
their system. The manager told me that Rush had been fired, and the accounts had been

deleted off their system.

PX 16
000097
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20.

v B

22,

After this telephone call, customer service representatives for the tribal lenders continued
to receive calls from consumers who stated that they were being contacted by Delaware
Solutions and Clear Credit Solutions about debts owed to AMG’s tribal lender clients.
The spreadsheet of complaints contains 106 entries in November and December 2014,
and J anuary 2015 from Delaware Solutions and Clear Credit Solutions.

Because we continued to receive complaints, I tried calling management for Delaware
Solutions and Clear Credit Solutions to again order them to cease and desist. On October
17,2014,1 spokc—; with a manager identifying himself as Mike Mathis. Mr. Mathis told me
to speak to Clear Credit Solutions’ attorney, but refused to give me the contact
information of that attorney and disconnected the call. When I called back that day, Mr.
Mathis again refused to give me any attorney contact information and stated that if I
continued to call he would consider it harassment and report me to law enforcement.
Non-customers and customers continued to complain of calls from Delaware Solutions
and/or Clear Credit Solutions, so I again called a call back number on November 25,
2104 and reached a man identifying himself as Matthew Weatherfield and who stated his
position was Team Lead. Mr. Weatherfield would not speak with me and transferred me
to a manager, who identified himself as Mike Mathis. I informed Mr. Mathis that we had
spokén about a month earlier and that consumers had continued to call complaining about
Delaware'S‘o_lutibns and/or Clear Credit Solutions. Mr. Mathis put me on hold to get the
company’s attorﬁey’ s information. He never came back on the line and the line then
disconnected. I tried to call back several times in the hours and days after this and either
reached a recorded message, dead air or collection agents who would refuse to transfer

me to a manager. The agents made various threats including reporting me to law

PX 16
000098
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enforcement and reporting a complaint to my state bar, in an effort to get me to stop
calling. Finally, I was told that their corporate office would call me. I waited for a call
from the corporate office, but never received one.

23.  The tribal lenders continued to receive calls from consumers about debt collection
attempts by Delaware Solutions and Clear Credit Solutions. The tribal lenders have
received calls as recently as July 22, 2015.

24. I have included some samples of correspondence that consumers have received and
forwarded to AMG, from Delaware Solutions and Clear Credit Solutions. True and
correct copies of emails and letters from Delaware Solutions and Clear Credit Solutions

are appended hereto as Attachment C.

I declare under penalty of perjury that the foregoing is true and correct. Executed this

5
;l&dayof Lk L, 2015,

PX 16
000099
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PETITION EXHIBIT 5

Civil Investigative Demand directed to
AFR Financial LLC
(FTC File No. 1523038)
(Mar. 23, 2016)
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PETITION EXHIBIT 6

FTC Resolution No.
992-3140 (Apr. 15, 1999)
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UNITED STATES OF AMERICA
BEFORE FEDERAL TRADE COMMISSION

COMMISSIONERS: Robert Pitofsky, Chairman
Sheila F. Anthony
Mozelle W. Thompson
Orson Swindle

RESOLUTION DIRECTING USE OF COMPULSORY PROCESS IN NONPUBLIC
INVESTIGATION INTO THE ACTS AND PRACTICES OF UNNAMED PERSONS,
PARTNERSHIPS AND CORPORATIONS ENGAGED IN ACTS OR PRACTICES IN

VIOLATION OF 15 U.S.C. § 1692 ET SEQ. AND/OR 15 U.S.C. § 45

File No. 992-3140
Nature and Scope of Investigation:

An investigation to determine whether, in the process of collecting debts, unnamed
persons, partnerships or corporations may be engaging in, or may have engaged in, acts or
practices in violation of the Fair Debt Collection Practices Act, 15 U.S.C. § 1692 et seq., and/or
Section 5 of the Federal Trade Commuission Act, 15 U.S.C. § 45, as amended. Such investigation
shall, in addition, determine whether Commission action to obtain redress of injury to consumers
or others would be in the public interest.

The Federal Trade Commission hereby resolves and directs that any and all compulsory
processes available to it be used in connection with this investigation.

Authority to Conduct Investigation:
Sections 6, 9, 10, and 20 of the Federal Trade Commission Act, 15 U.S.C. §§ 46, 49, 50
and 57b-1, as amended; FTC Procedures and Rules of Practice, 16 C.F.R. 1.1 et seq. and

supplements thereto.

Title VIII of the Consumer Credit Protection Act, Section 814, 15 U.S.C. § 16921

Lodll 3. Cloke—

. Donald S. Clark
Secretary

By direction of the Commission.

Dated: April 15, 1999
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PETITION EXHIBIT 7

|_etter from Donald E. Pinaud, Jr.,
Kattman & Pinaud, P.A., to
FTC attorney Michael Tankersley
(Apr. 5, 2016)
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KATTMAN (-~ PINAUD
PROFESSIONAL ASSQCIATION
ATTORNEYS AT LAW

4069 Atlantic Boulevard Jacksonville, Florida 32207

Telephone (904) 398-1229
Fax (904) 398-1568

John F. Kattman L. Beatrix B. Trado

Donald E. Pinaud, Jr. Certified Legal Assistant

April 5,2016

Michael Tankersley

Federal Trade Commission
600 Pennsylvania Avenue, NW
Mail Stop: CC-10232
Washington, DC 20580

Re:  Our Clients: AFR Financial, LLC., and Kimona Fuartado
Dear Mr. Tankersley:

i, I have been retained by AFR Financial, LLC., and Kimona Fuartado, to assist them in
responding to your Civil Investigative Demand you have served upon them. Please direct all
communications in this matter to my attention, and do not contact my clients directly in the
future. o

We wish to be as helpful and forthcoming as possible, but obviously, I need to understand
exactly what you are trying to discover and what is being investigated, before I can properly
advise my clients as to what they need to do. Will you please contact me, in writing, and explain
to me exactly what or who you are investigating, and why exactly you want information from my
clients? Again, as an attorney, I am obligated to advise them regarding their cooperation with
you. Please provide me this information so we can best be ableto be of the most assistance.

Obviously, we cannot comply with your requested date of a response by April 8, 2016. 1
will await the information from you I have requested, then we will co-operate fully as is
appropriate without any delay. You can contact me in writing at-the address above, or email me
at dp/@jaxjustice.com. . . '

With war:mesf régards, I remain Pz e
Very truly yours,

Donald E. Pinaud, Jr.

DEP/adl
cc: clients. .
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PETITION EXHIBIT 8

Letter from FTC attorney Michael
Tankersley to Donald E. Pinaud, Jr.,
Kattman & Pinaud, P.A.

(Apr. 12, 2016)



Case 3:16-mc-00045-MMH-JRK Document 1-8 Filed 07/29/16 Page 2 of 4 PagelD 60

Tankerslex, Michael

From: . Tankersley, Michael

Sent: Tuesday, April 12, 2016 5:54 PM

To: 'dp@jaxjustice.com’

Subject: AFR Financial, FTC Civil Investigative Demand
Attachments: SKMBT_42316041217530.pdf

Please see the attached response to your letter.

Michael Tankersley

Federal Trade Commission
Bureau of Consumer Protection
600 Pennsylvania Ave., NW
CC-10232

Washington, DC 20580

(202) 326-2991
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Washington, DC 20580
(202) 326-2991

<SKMBT 42316041217530.pdf>
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Pe ) UNITED STATES OF AMERICA
i A Federal Trade Commission
25 p// léi WASHINGTON, D.C. 20580
F i S

')\':'.‘ Jo= Sl A ¢
\%._%’ \ T

Ty N -
K
Michael E. Tankersley
Bureau of Consumer Protection
Phone: (202) 326-2991

Email: mtankersley@ftc.gov

April 12,2016
By Telecopier: (904) 398-1568

Donald E. Pinaud, Jr.
Kattman & Pinaud

4069 Atlantic Boulevard
Jacksonville, FL 32207

Re: Civil Investigative Demand to AFR Financial, LLC

Dear Mr. Pinaud:

I am writing to respond to your April 5 letter concerning the Civil Investigative Demand
addressed to AFR Financial, LLC, dated March 23, 2016.

The Federal Trade Commission is conducting a confidential law enforcement investigation into
practices that may violate the Fair Debt Collection Practices Act and Federal Trade Commission Act.
The Demand to AFR Financial, LLC specifically seeks information concerning the collection of Fast
Case Debt. Information concerning the details of this investigation is confidential. The Commission has
separately brought a civil action to stop collection of debt circulated under the name 500 Fast Cash. See
FTC and the People of New York v. Brace, Case No. 1:15-cv-00875-RJA (W.D.N.Y ., filed Oct. 5, 2015).

I have spoken with Kimona Fuartado and understand that AFT Financial, LLC, collected on debt
portfolios covered by the Civil Investigative Demand and has some responsive documentation. As you
acknowledge, the date for responding to the Civil Investigative Demand has already passed. Please have
AFR Financial, LLC, provide responses to the interrogatories and produce the records in its possession,
custody or control that are responsive to the Civil Investigative Demand as soon as possible.

Sincerely,

7
Michael E. Tankersley
Staff Attorney

Bureau of Consumer Protection
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PETITION EXHIBIT9

Email exchange between FTC attorney
Michael Tankersley and Donald E.
Pinaud, Jr., Kattman & Pinaud, P.A.

(Apr. 13, 2016)
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Tankerslex, Michael

From: s Tankersley, Michael

Sent: Wednesday, April 13, 2016 11:36 AM

To: '‘Don Pinaud'

Subject: RE: AFR Financial, FTC Civil Investigative Demand
Follow Up Flag: Follow up

Flag Status: Flagged

Dear Mr. Pinaud:

The Civil Investigative Demand does not accuse, suggest or presume any wrongdoing by AFR
Financial. We are gathering the information covered by the Demand to evaluate whether any
wrongdoing has occurred and, if so, who may be responsible.

Michael Tankersley
Federal Trade Commission
(202) 326-2991

From: Don Pinaud [mailto:dp@jaxjustice.com]
Sent: Wednesday, April 13, 2016 9:43 AM

To: Tankersley, Michael
Subject: Re: AFR Financial, FTC Civil Investigative Demand

Mr. Tankersley,

Confidential or not, | need to know if you are looking at suggesting or investigating any wrongdoing by
my clients. That's my job. | have to know that before we cooperate for obvious reasons. So are you just
looking for info in support of a case against others, or are my clients potentially in jeopardy.

Thank you.

Don Pinaud

Kattman & Pinaud, P.A.
4069 Atlantic Blvd.
Jacksonville, Florida 32207
(904)398-1229
JaxJustice.com

On Apr 12, 2016, at 5:53 PM, Tankersley, Michael <MTANKERSLEY@ftc.gov> wrote:

Please see the attached response to your letter.

Michael Tankersley

Federal Trade Commission
Bureau of Consumer Protection
600 Pennsylvania Ave., NW
CC-10232
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PETITION EXHIBIT 10

Email from FTC attorney Michael
Tankersley to Donald E. Pinaud, Jr.,
Kattman & Pinaud, P.A.

(May 27, 2016)
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Tankersley, Michael
— E——————es e}
From: Tankersley, Michael
Sent: Friday, May 27, 2016 10:26 AM
To: 'Don Pinaud'
Subject: RE: AFR Financial, FTC Civil Investigative Demand

Dear Mr. Pinaud:
Please give me a call about the long overdue response to this Civil Investigative Demand.

Even if AFR Financial is still locating materials, we need an interim response to show progress
on complying with the Civil Investigative Demand.

Michael Tankersley

Federal Trade Commission
Bureau of Consumer Protection
600 Pennsylvania Ave., NW
CC-10232

Washington, DC 20580

(202) 326-2991
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PETITION EXHIBIT 11

Email from FTC attorney Michael
Tankersley to Donald E. Pinaud, Jr.,
Kattman & Pinaud, P.A.

(June 7, 2016)
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If_nkersley, Michael

From: Tankersley, Michael

Sent: Tuesday, June 07, 2016 10:44 AM

To: 'Don Pinaud'

Subject: AFR Financial, FTC Civil Investigative Demand

Dear Mr. Pinaud:

We still have received no response to this long overdue response to this Civil Investigative
Demand. Please give me a call immediately if your client still intends to respond.

Our next step when the recipient of a CID has not responded is to bring an enforcement action in
federal district court. A proper response from the company could avoid such a proceeding.

Michael Tankersley

Federal Trade Commission
Bureau of Consumer Protection
600 Pennsylvania Ave., NW
CC-10232

Washington, DC 20580

(202) 326-2991
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PETITION EXHIBIT 12

Email exchange between FTC attorney
Michael Tankersley and Donald E.
Pinaud, Jr., Kattman & Pinaud, P.A.

(July 15, 2016)
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From: dp

To: Tankersley, Michael

Subject: RE: AFR Financial, FTC Civil Investigative Demand
Date: Friday, July 15, 2016 10:37:50 AM

I have an appointment with her the week of August 1. That was the earliest our calendars
could accomodate. | apologize for the delay.

Best

Don

Sent from my Verizon, Samsung Galaxy smartphone

-------- Original message --------

From: "Tankersley, Michael” <MTANKERSLEY @ftc.gov>
Date: 7/15/16 10:30 AM (GMT-05:00)

To: 'Don Pinaud' <dp@jaxjustice.com>

Subject: RE: AFR Financial, FTC Civil Investigative Demand

Dear Mr. Pinaud:

We still have received no response to this long overdue response to this Civil Investigative
Demand. This matter has now been referred to the FTC’s Office of General Counsel to
initiate an enforcement action in federal district court.

A copy of a recent ruling from the Middle District of Florida regarding an FTC petition for
enforcement is attached.

Michael Tankersley

Federal Trade Commission
Bureau of Consumer Protection
600 Pennsylvania Ave., NW
CC-10232

Washington, DC 20580

(202) 326-2991


mailto:dp@jaxjustice.com
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IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
FOR THE MIDDLE DISTRICT OF FLORIDA
JACKSONVILLE DIVISION

FEDERAL TRADE COMMISSION,

Petitioner,
Misc. No.

V.
AFR FINANCIAL LLC,

Respondent.

N N N N N N N N N N N N

(PROPOSED) ORDER TO SHOW CAUSE WHY
RESPONDENT AFR FINANCIAL LLC
SHOULD NOT COMPLY WITH FEDERAL TRADE COMMISSION
ADMINISTRATIVE INVESTIGATIVE PROCESS

Pursuant to the authority conferred by Sections 16 and 20 of the Federal Trade
Commission Act, 15 U.S.C. 88 56 and 57b-1, Petitioner, the Federal Trade Commission
(FTC), has invoked the aid of this Court for an order requiring Respondent, AFR
Financial LLC, to comply in full with the March 23, 2016 civil investigative demand
(CID) issued in aid of an FTC investigation (FTC File No. 1523038).

The Court has considered the Commission’s Petition for an Order to Enforce
Administrative Investigative Process and the papers filed in support thereof; and it

appears to the Court that Petitioner has shown good cause for the entry of this Order. It is

by this Court hereby
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ORDERED that Respondent AFR Financial LLC appearat __ a.m./p.m. on
the  dayof , 2016, in Courtroom No. of the Bryan Simpson
United States Courthouse for the Middle District of Florida, 300 North Hogan Street, in
Jacksonville, Florida, and show cause, if any there be, why this Court should not grant
said Petition and enter an Order enforcing the CID and directing it to produce the
documents and information requested by the CID within ten (10) days of the receipt of
the Court’s enforcement order, or at such later time as may be directed by the FTC.
Unless the Court determines otherwise, notwithstanding the filing or pendency of any
procedural or other motions, all issues raised by the Petition and supporting papers, and
any opposition to the Petition, will be considered at the hearing on the Petition, and the
allegations of said Petition shall be deemed admitted unless controverted by a specific
factual showing.

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that, if Respondent believes it necessary for the
Court to hear live testimony, it must file an affidavit reflecting such testimony (or if a
proposed witness is not available to provide such an affidavit, a specific description of
the witness’s proposed testimony) and explain why Respondent believes live testimony is
required.

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that, if Respondent intends to file pleadings,
affidavits, exhibits, motions or other papers in opposition to said Petition or to the entry
of the Order requested therein, such papers must be filed with the Court and received by

Petitioner’s counsel by a.m./p.m. on , 2016. Such

submission shall include, in the case of any affidavits or exhibits not previously



Case 3:16-mc-00045-MMH-JRK Document 1-13 Filed 07/29/16 Page 3 of 4 PagelD 73

submitted, or objections not previously made to the Federal Trade Commission, an
explanation as to why such objections were not made or such papers or information not
submitted to the Commission. Any reply by Petitioner shall be filed with the Court and

received by Respondents by a.m./p.m. on :

2016.

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED, pursuant to Fed. R. Civ. P. 26(a)(1)(B)(v) and
81(a)(5), that this is a summary proceeding and that no party shall be entitled to discovery
without further order of the Court upon a specific showing of need; and that the dates for
a hearing and the filing of papers established by this Order shall not be altered without
prior order of the Court upon good cause shown; and

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED, pursuant to Fed. R. Civ. P. 81(a)(5), that a copy of
this Order and copies of said Petition and Memorandum in support thereof filed herein,
be served forthwith by Petitioner upon Respondent or its counsel by personal service, or
by certified or registered mail with return receipt requested, or by overnight express
delivery service.

SO ORDERED:

United States Magistrate Judge

Dated: , Jacksonville, Florida
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PRESENTED BY: DAVID C. SHONKA
Acting General Counsel

LESLIE RICE MELMAN
Assistant General Counsel for Litigation

BRADLEY GROSSMAN, Litigation Counsel

Of Counsel: Office of the General Counsel
Federal Trade Commission

MICHAEL TANKERSLEY 600 Pennsylvania Ave., N.W.

Division of Financial Practices Washington, D.C. 20580

(202) 326-2994
(202) 326-2477 (fax)
Dated: July 29, 2016 bgrossman@ftc.gov
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